
 
 
 
 
 
 

PCCS Board of Director’s Meeting 
 AGENDA 

December 7, 2021, at 7:o0PM 
Vicky Ranney Library 
1571 Jones Point Road 
Grayslake, IL 60030 

_________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Please note that wearing masks will be required for all attendees joining  
 
Call to Order            President  

 

Motion to Approve the Agenda  
 

Public Comment      10 Minutes 
 

Discussion Agenda   
1. Phase 5 Update 
2. 1st Reading Bylaw Amendments 
3. FY21 Compliance Audit 
4. ISBE Monitoring Visit  
5. Committee Updates  

 

 Consent Agenda 
6. Director’s Report 
7. Financial Statements  
8. Motion to Approve Open Session Minutes of Previous Board and Committee Meetings  
9. Motion to Accept Reports on Consent Agenda 
        

Closed Session: 
 

Discussion related to 5ILCS 120/2(c) 21-Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this 
Act, whether for purposes of approval by the body of the minutes or semi-annual review of the minutes 
mandated by Section 2.06 

10. Review Closed Session Minutes from Previous Board Meetings 
 

Discussion related to 5ILCS 120/2(c)(1) - The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body, 
including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against 
legal counsel for the public body to determine its validity. 

11. New Employee(s)/ Resignation(s) 
  

Discussion Related to 5ILCS 120/2(c)(11) Litigation, when an action against, affecting, or on behalf of 
the public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the 
public body finds that an action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall 
be recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 
12. Legal Bills:  GSL- $110.00    Lawsuit - $6,792.50 
13. Pending Litigation 

 

Public Comment      10 Minutes 
 

Action Agenda  
     10A – Approve Closed Session Minutes from Previous Board Meetings  

   11A – Approve New Hire/ Accept Resignation  
                 12A - Approve Legal Bills for $ 6,902.50 
        

 New Business:  
 

Adjourn 
 

A copy of the board documents for this meeting is available for viewing on the school web site. 
 
 
 Thank you for attending the meeting of the PCCS Board of Education. Individual board members do not respond to 

public comment. For questions or comments, please e-mail the Board at board@pccharterschool.org. Board e-mails are 
received and responded to by the Board President.   
 
The PCCS Board of Directors consists of: 
  
President: Stacey White   Vice President: Jim Mertz           Treasurer:  Ankur Bhatia 
Secretary: Abe Janis   Nell Anen    Rebekka Herrington            
Demetri Georgatsos    JoAnn Stewart                                       



Discussion Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Board of Director’s Policy 

Educational Philosophy 100 Series 
 

Policy # 100.4                                           

PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL BYLAWS 

The Board of Directors, pursuant to Article XIV of the Bylaws of Prairie Crossing Charter School, has adopted 
the following Amended and Restated Bylaws of Prairie Crossing Charter School effective May 28, 2013 until 
otherwise amended, altered, revised or repealed. 

ARTICLE I. NAME 

The name of the Corporation shall be Prairie Crossing Charter School. 

ARTICLE II. PURPOSES 

Section 1. Not for Profit. The Corporation is organized under and shall operate as an Illinois Not For Profit 
Corporation, and shall have such powers as are now or as may hereafter be granted by the Illinois General 
Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986. 

Section 2. Purposes. The purposes of the Corporation are educational and charitable within the meaning of 
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not limited to the 
establishment of a Charter School under the auspices of the State of Illinois. 

Section 3. Rules. The following rules shall conclusively bind the Corporation and all persons acting for or on 
behalf of it: 

a. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to 
its members, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be 
authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make 
payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth herein. No substantial part 
of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise 
attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in 
(including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any 
candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, the Corporation 
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt 
from Federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) or (b) by a 
corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal 
Revenue Law). 

b. Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making 
provision for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets of the 
Corporation exclusively for the purposes of the Corporation in such manner, or to such 
organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, 
religious, or scientific purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or 
organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), as the Board of 
Directors shall determine. Any assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Court of 
Common Pleas of the county in which the principal office of the Corporation is then located, 
exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall 
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

c. The Corporation shall not adopt any practice, policy or procedure which would result in 
discrimination on the basis race; color; creed; religion; national origin; sex; sexual orientation; 
age; ancestry; marital status; military status; order of protection status; unfavorable military 
discharge; citizenship status provided the individual is authorized to work in the United States; 



 
use of lawful products while not at work; being a victim of domestic or sexual violence; genetic 
information; physical or mental handicap or disability, if otherwise able to perform the essential 
functions of the job with reasonable accommodation; pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical 
conditions; and other legally protected categories. 

ARTICLE III. REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of Illinois within the boundaries 
of Lake or Cook Counties, a registered office and a registered agent whose office shall be identical 
with such registered office. 

ARTICLE IV. MEMBERS 

The Corporation shall have no members. 

ARTICLE V. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction 
of its Board of Directors which may delegate authority to specified officers and other designated 
personnel. 

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors shall consist of not less than 
nine seven (7) and not more than twelve (12) individuals. 

Section 3. Term. The term for directors is three years.  Each director shall hold office until the end of 
his or her respective term, resignation, removal, or until his or her successor shall have been elected 
and qualified. No director may serve for more than threewo consecutive, full three-year terms, 
excluding any ex-officio tenure. Terms shall be staggered so that minimally onethree (13) and not 
more than five (5) directors shall be up for election in any year. 

Section 4. Board Composition. Three two directors, whether members of the parent body or 
otherwise, shall be elected by the parents of children currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. fourFive directors, whether elected by such parents or appointed 
by the Board, shall themselves be parents of children currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. One parent elect Board position will be elected Upon a vacancy 
created in accordance with the terms in Section 3 and Section 10per yearly election cycle and . in the 
event no parent elect candidate enters the election, the Board of Directors may fill the vacancy with a 
Board appointed member until the next parent election cycle. The Board of Directors may also elect 
ex-officio directors from time to time, such directors being allowed to attend and participate in all 
open sessions of board meetings but not being allowed to vote. 

Section 5. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly on 
dates to be determined by the Board, for no less than ten (109) regular meetings each year. The 
meeting agenda will be posted according to the Illinois Open Meetings Act. The annual meeting of 
the Board of Directors shall be held on the date corresponding to the date that the regular meeting 
scheduled for October would otherwise be held. 

Section 6. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the 
request of the President or a majority of Directors.   The location, notification, and posting of the 
meeting must adhere to the Illinois Open Meetings Act. Notice shall be given to all directors via email 
if within a week of the meeting, or telephone, in addition to email, if less than a week from the date 
of the meeting. 

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors provided that, if less than a majority of the 
directors is present at said meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting to 
another time without further notice. 

Formatted: Highlight



 
Section 8. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is 
required by statute, these bylaws, or the Articles of Incorporation. No director may act by proxy on 
any matter of Board governance. 

Section 9. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the Board of 
Directors unless the articles of incorporation, a statute, or these bylaws provide that a vacancy or a 
directorship so created shall be filled in some other manner, in which case such provision shall 
control.  When a vacancy reduces the membership of the Board to less than seven  nine members, the 
Board of Directors shall endeavor to fill any vacancy within 90 days by electing or appointing  a new 
member. 

Section 10. Resignation and Removal of Directors. A director may resign at any time upon written 
notice to the Board of Directors. A director may be removed with or without cause by the affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the total directors. Written nNotice shall be given sent to all directors a minimum 
of 7 days before a vote to remove a director. A director being considered for removal shall have the 
opportunity to address the Board prior to any vote on such removal. 

Section 11. Compensation. Members of the Board of Directors shall not receive any salary for their 
services as members of the Board, but by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and 
expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of 
the Board; provided, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from 
serving the Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore. 

ARTICLE VI. COMMITTEES 

Section 1. Committee Establishment. The Board of Directors may by resolution designate standing 
committees, ad hoc committees, and ad hoc task forces as it deems necessary for the effective 
governance of the corporation. Each committee, whether created by such resolution or provided for 
in Section 2 of this Article 2, shall consist of two or more directors, may be chaired by a director , with 
at least one committee member being a parent of a child currently enrolled 
at Prairie Crossing Charter School. Board committees and task forces act as recommending bodies to 
the Board of Directors and do not have authority to approve governance or management issues.  With 
the exception of the Executive Committee, appointments to committees, task forces, or other bodies 
shall be by the Board President. Any member of such bodies may be removed by the Board President 
whenever in the judgment of the President the best interests of the Corporation would be served by 
such removal.  Staff members assigned to such bodies are to be considered advisory, and not 
members of said bodies, unless specifically appointed as a member. 

Section 2. Standing Committees. The Corporation shall have the following standing committees, all 
members of which, unless otherwise noted, will be appointed by the President: 

(a) Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of all officers of the 
Corporation and any other individuals appointed by the President and approved by the Board 
of Directors. The committee shall be chaired by the President and shall be fully authorized, 
unless such authority be otherwise specifically limited by the Board of Directors, to act on 
behalf of the Corporation during the intervals between meetings of the Board of Directors. 
Actions taken by the Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Directors for 
ratification at the next regular meeting thereof. 

(b) Finance Committee. The Finance Committee members shall be appointed by the 
President and shall include the Treasurer.  It shall be responsible for oversight of the 
compilation of the annual budget for submission to the Board of Directors for approval, 
assisting the Corporation in the interviewing and selecting of accounting professionals to 
conduct the annual audit and reviewing any recommendations thereof upon completion of 
the audit, and reviewing insurance coverage and insurance companies for the Corporation. 
The Finance Committee will review the financial reports of the Corporation not less than 
quarterly to determine the relationship of budgeted items to actual expenditures and 



 
revenues, and the chairperson of the Finance Committee shall report the results of such 
review to the Board of Directors at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 

(c) Academic Excellence Committee. The Academic Excellence Committee members 
shall be appointed by the Board President. Board Policy will define the Committee makeup 
and meeting frequency.  The Committee will monitor curriculum content, student 
achievement, staff development, and alignment with the academic standards in our charter 
agreement. 

(d) Governance Committee. The Governance Committee members shall be appointed by 
the Board President. Board Policy will define the Committee makeup and meeting frequency. 
The Governance Committee will review and evaluate school policies on a regular basis to 
determine if policies are relevant and address the needs of the school.  The committee will 
collaborate with the administration to identify and develop new policies, and will advise the 
Board of Directors on policy-related issues. The Committee will recommend the goals of the 
strategic plan to the Board of Directors, and monitor the progress of said goals. 

(e) Outreach Committee. The Outreach Committee members shall be appointed by the 
Board President.  Board Policy will define the Committee makeup and meeting 
frequency.  The Committee will be responsible to the Board of Directors for raising awareness 
to the broader community of the opportunity to choose PCCS as their child(ren)’s) 
school.  The Committee will coordinate development efforts with the school's Executive 
Director, or other approved appointee. 

Section 3. Other Bodies. The Board of Directors by resolution may designate commissions, task 
forces, advisory bodies or other such bodies not having or exercising the authority of the Board of 
Directors in the management of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall from time to time 
designate by resolution the scope and authority of any such body. Except as otherwise provided in 
such resolution, members need not be directors of the Corporation, and the President shall appoint 
the members thereof. 

Section 4. Blank. 

Section 5. Term of Office. Each member of a committee or other body shall continue until the member 
resigns, is removed or ceases to qualify as a member thereof, unless the committee or other body is 
sooner terminated. 

Section 6. Chairperson. Unless otherwise specified in this Article VI, one member of each committee 
or other body shall be appointed chairperson by the President of the Corporation. 

Section 7. Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee or other body may be filled by 
appointments in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments. 

Section 8. Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating 
a committee or other body, a majority of the entire committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act 
of a majority of the members present at a meeting in which a quorum is present shall be the act of the 
committee or other body. 

Section 9. Subcommittees or Sub-Bodies. Each committee or other body may create by resolution 
subcommittees or sub-bodies to assist in fulfilling its purpose, which subcommittees or sub-bodies 
shall operate in accordance with such resolution. The chairperson of the particular committee or body 
shall appoint the chairperson of each its subcommittees or sub-bodies. 

ARTICLE VII. OFFICERS 

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Treasurer, 
a Secretary, and such other officers as may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. Officers 
whose authority and duties are not prescribed in these bylaws shall have the authority and perform 



 
the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Not more than two offices may be 
held by the same person. 

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected at each regular 
annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created and filled at 
any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor shall 
have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign 
or shall have been removed in the manner herein provided. Election of an officer shall not of itself 
create contractual rights. 

Section 3. Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by 
the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served 
thereby. 

Section 4. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Corporation. Subject 
to the direction and control of the Board of Directors, he or she shall be in charge of the business and 
affairs of the Corporation. 

Section 5. Vice-President. The Vice-President shall assist the President in the discharge of his or her 
duties as the President may direct, and shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be 
assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors. In the absence of the President or 
in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the 
President and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon 
the President. 

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the principal accounting and financial officer of the 
Corporation. The Treasurer shall (a) have charge of and be responsible for the maintenance of 
adequate books of account for the Corporation; (b) have charge and custody of all funds and securities 
of the Corporation, and be responsible thereof, and for the receipt and disbursement thereof; and (c) 
perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time 
may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall (a) record the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices, including without 
limitation annual notice of the dates of all regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors, are 
duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; (c) be a custodian 
of the corporate records; (d) keep a register of the post office address of each member of the Board of 
Directors and the Advisory Board which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such members; and (e) 
perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may 
be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE VIII. CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS 

Section 1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any agent or agents of the Corporation, in 
addition to the officers so authorized by these bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver 
any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation and such authority may be general 
or confined to specific instances. 

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or 
other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer 
or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be 
determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board 
of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer and 
countersigned by the President or Vice-President of the Corporation. 

Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of 
the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may 
select. 



 
Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors, or person designated by the Board of Directors, or an officer 
of the Corporation, may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise 
for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the Corporation. 

ARTICLE IX. BOOKS AND RECORDS 

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep 
minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Directors, and committees having any of the authority of 
the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE X. FISCAL YEAR 

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XI. NO CORPORATE SEAL 

The Corporation shall not have nor use a corporate seal. 

ARTICLE XII. WAIVER OF NOTICE 

Whenever any notice whatsoever is required to be given under the provisions of the Illinois General 
Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986 or under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the 
bylaws of the Corporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such 
notice, whether before or after the time started therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of 
such notice. 

ARTICLE XIII. INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 1. Indemnification. The Corporation shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each 
person who may serve or who has served at any time as a Board Member, Committee Member  or 
employee of the corporation against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, 
counsel fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement payments, reasonably incurred 
by or imposed upon such person in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, 
suit or proceeding in which he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such 
capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such person with respect to any 
matter as to which he or she shall have been finally adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted 
in good faith in the reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Corporation. 
The right of indemnification under this Article shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other 
rights to which any person may be entitled. 

This Article constitutes a contract between the corporation and the indemnified Board Member, 
Committee Member  and employees. No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article, 
which adversely affects the right of an indemnified Board Member, Committee Member , or 
employee under this Article, shall apply to such Board Member, Committee Member , or employee 
with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or 
repeal. 

Section 2. Insurance. The Corporation is entitled to purchase insurance for purposes of the 
indemnifications provided in the Article to the full extent as determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENTS 

The power to alter, amend, or repeal the bylaws or adopt new bylaws shall be vested in the Board of 
Directors unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or the bylaws. Such action must 
be adopted by no less than two-thirds of the members of the Board of Directors at a regular meeting 
for which written notice of the purpose shall be given; provided, however, that no amendment to the 
bylaws may be adopted unless such amendment is first presented for consideration at a prior regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors. The bylaws may contain any provisions for the regulations and 



 
management of the affairs of the Corporation not inconsistent with the law or the Articles of 
Incorporation. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Adoption Dates: 

Amended and Restated: May 28, 2013 

Amended and Restated: March 30, 2021 

 

 

 

 



PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

COMPLIANCE AUDIT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021



PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
TABLE OF CONTENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
REQUIREMENTS OF APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
PRESCRIBED BY ADMINISTERING AGENCY 1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 3

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 4



CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent  
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member‐firm‐disclaimer for details. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

(1)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS OF APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

PRESCRIBED BY ADMINISTERING AGENCY

Board of Directors
Prairie Crossing Charter School and its Subsidiaries
Grayslake, Illinois

We have audited the compliance of Prairie Crossing Charter School and its Subsidiaries (PCCS) with 
the types of compliance requirements provided by its administering agency, the Illinois State Board of 
Education (ISBE), that are applicable to PCCS for the year ended June 30, 2021. The ISBE provided 
the compliance requirements subject to audit to PCCS in its 2021 audit program and a charter school 
agreement and accountability plan dated July 24, 2014, originally agreed to between PCCS and the 
Illinois State Charter School Commission (ISCSC).

Management’s Responsibility

Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and applicable grants is the 
responsibility of management.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on PCCS’s compliance based on our audit. The applicable 
laws and regulations that were tested included the following:

 Sections 10-21.9 and 34-18.5 of the Illinois School Code (105 ILCS 5/10-21.9 and 105 ILCS 5/34-
18.5) regarding criminal background investigations and checks of the statewide sex offender 
database and statewide murderer and violent offender against youth database of applicants for 
employment.

 The Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act (325 ILCS 5/1 et seq.).

 The Illinois School Student Records Act (105 ILCS 5/10-1 et seq.).

 The Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.).

 The Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.).

 Hazardous Materials Training (105 ILCS 5/10-20-17a).

 School Safety Drill Act (105 ILCS 128/1 et seq.).

 Eye Protection in School Act (105 ILCS 115/0.01 et seq.).

 Toxic Art Supplies in Schools Act (105 ILCS 135/1 et seq.).

 Infectious Disease Policies and Rules (105 ILCS 5/10-21.11).

 Physical Fitness Facility Medical Emergency Preparedness Act (210 ILCS 74/1 et seq.).



Board of Directors

Prairie Crossing Charter School and its Subsidiary

(2)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

 All applicable health and safety regulations of the State of Illinois and the local municipalities,
including without limitation those laws specifically identified by the Commission or the State Board
as being applicable to charter school. (https://www.isbe.net/Documents/Non-
Curricular_Health_and_Safety_2017.pdf)

 Conformance with the following sections of the charter school agreement:

o Section 4: Attendance and Enrollment.

o Section 4: Governance and Operation.

o Section 5: Maintenance of Corporate Status and Good Standing.

o Section 5: Facility.

o Section 6: Pension Payments.

o Section 6: Management and Financial Controls.

o Section 8: Insurance.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about PCCS’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of PCCS’s 
compliance with those requirements.  

Opinion

In our opinion, PCCS complied, in all material respects, with ISBE’s requirements referred to above for 
the year ended June 30, 2021.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Racine, Wisconsin
November 1, 2021

a



PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(3)

No current year findings.



PRAIRIE CROSSING CHARTER SCHOOL AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(4)

No prior year findings.



 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







































 
 
 

PCCS Board of Directors, 
Academics Committee Meeting 

AGENDA 
Tuesday November 16, 2021 @ 6:00PM 

Wright School House/Library 
1571 Jones Point Rd 
Grayslake, Il. 60030 

 
 

Please note that wearing masks will be required for all attendees joining the meeting 
 

Call to Order Abe Janis 
 6:06 pm 
 Jenny Deihl – Public Visitor (parent) 
 Abe Janis – Chair (Board Member) 
 Gabi White – Committee Member 
 Demetrios Georgatsos – Committee Member (Board Member) 
 Nell Anen – Board Member 
 Teri Boettcher– Potential Committee Member 

Public Comment  

Discussion Items 
1. Phase 5 Update/Classroom protocols 

• Staff and students are working hard to balance academics, social emotional and safety 
• Feel that we have gotten more of the social emotional opportunities 
• Carpool and Morning appears fairly normal – Recess is happening 
• Specials are starting at 8:10’ 
• Having a Check in meeting and announcement before Special 

• Second Step and CREWS 
• Emotional temperature check 
• Calm Classroom activity 
• Tone setting 

• Students are moving classroom to classroom in the 5 – 8 building like they have in the 
past - Departmentalizing 

• Not as much movement in the K – 4 building 
• Have only suspended the multi-age groups 

• Teachers are deciding how to move forward 
• Great partnership building options 
• Helps to develop the leaders and those that might be interested in being 

leaders in the future 
• Looping is continuing as well 
• Safety 

• Masking 
• Shields (eating particularly) 
• Spreading as much as they can for eating 
• Controlling the hallways for limited crowding and congestion 
• All water fountains are currently closed, but all sinks are available 

• Same grade classes are intermingling and sharing spaces 
• Holding specials outside as much as possible 
• Morning and Aftercare are continuing – moving more and more indoors 
• Sports have begun 

• Basketball – Masked students, no spectators, games on Facebook 
• Have begun allowing more visitors to campus, not yet working indoors or with kids 

directly 



• Starting to cook again 
• Holding a dance in December for 7th and 8th grade 
• Carpool – Will be in the gym during inclement weather 
• Mask wear is the biggest complaint versus the way they are doing eating 

• There protocol is to allow for break time 
• In a dense situation, they will be asked to wear a mask (outdoor assembly) 

• What is Staff’s feedback? 
• During staff meetings they discuss the protocols 
• There is still some fear within the staff – or concern based 
• Much of the conversation is peer to peer 

2. FY21 Report Card and Assessments 
• Continue to review standardized data sets 
• NWA and IAR numbers 
• NWA – 2nd Grade + 

• Showed a widening of the achievement gap 
• More accelerated students than in the past 

• 60% of current 6 – 8 are algebra or geometry 
• Typically, 40% - 60% 

• More students with direct intervention 
• 35% percentile and below 
• 12% of students are now in interventions 

• IAR – 3rd Grade + 
• There was not a lot of surprises 
• This test was not given in the best overall conditions 
• ELA was higher than Math 
• 49% ELA 43% Math – Meet and Exceed 
• Lost category – 3-5% per grade 

• How do we compare?  
• ISBE has not yet figured this all out at this time. 
• We are not sure if we might get one more pass because of how the testing was 

done and completed.  
• This testing was not 100% of the population 

• Only 75% of the students in 3rd grade took the test  
• There scores were a lower outlier 

• 5th Grades showed the 65% meets or exceeds – highest achieving grade 
• Fall NWA was taken, and we accelerated more students than expected 
• We are still combing the data to understand and find any anomalies within the data 
• The teachers are feeling the gap within the classroom across the board. 

• They do see that the groups are farther apart than they are used to 
• The next couple of semesters will be telling to see if the kids are now moving forward 

and what the pace can be and how they will finish the year out 
• Socialization was a key component of the first trimester 

3. Committee members/recruitment 
• Teri has expressed interest in becoming a member of the committee 

• Agreed to join the committee 
• Nell to also add to the committee 
• Would like to have a committee of at least 5 people 
• February 15th and May 17th are planned committee meetings - Quarterly 

4. Topics/Tasks in future meetings. 
• What is ISBEs mandates around Critical Race Theory? They are awaiting more details 

on what ISBE is looking to have implemented. 
• Asked about future topics: 

• Reading Curriculum 
• Math Curriculum 
• Critical Thinking  
• Critical Race Theory 
• Sex Education Curriculum 

 
 

Action Items 



Thank you for attending the meeting of the PCCS Board of Education. Individual board members do not respond to 
public comment. For questions or comments, please e-mail the Board at board@pccharterschool.org. Board e-mails are 
received and responded to by the Board President. 

The PCCS Board of Directors consists of: 

1A. No Action Items for this meeting 
 

New Business 

If you would like a committee email address. OMA will be discussed at the next meeting 
 

Adjourn 

7:05 pm 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

President: Stacey White Vice President: Jim Mertz Treasurer: Ankur Bhatia
Secretary: Abe Janis Nell Anen Rebekka Herrington 
Demetri Georgatsos JoAnn Stewart  

 




